

Upon this fourth day of November of the year two thousand fifteen, came and appeared before me, Meredith Maritza Boekhoudt, civil law notary on Sint Maarten: --

1. Mr. WYCLIFFE SYLVESTER SMITH, a retired pastor, residing at W.F.M. Lampe Road 14, Ebenezer Estate, Sint Maarten, born on Saba on December 18, 1948, according to his declaration currently not married/widower, who identified himself with his passport issued by the Kingdom of the Netherlands with number NP1PFK3F3; and -----
2. Mr. JAMES EDWIN ARRINDELL, clergyman, residing at Naked Boy Hill Drive 15, Sucker Garden, Sint Maarten, born in Sint Maarten, formerly Netherlands Antilles, on March 10, 1960, according to his declaration married, who identified himself with his passport issued by the Kingdom of the Netherlands with number NT30PJ3L9 -----

The appearers declared to herewith establish an Association and to lay down the following Articles of Association: -----

Article 1 -----

NAME AND SEAT -----

1. The Association, further also to be referred to as “the Association” or “the Party”, bears the name: “**SINT MAARTEN CHRISTIAN PARTY**”, which can be abbreviated as “**SMCP**”.-----
2. The Association has its statutory seat on Sint Maarten. -----

Article 2 -----

DURATION -----

The Association is established for an indefinite period of time. -----

Article 3 -----

GUIDING PRINCIPLES -----

1. The Party acknowledges the sovereignty of the Almighty God over all the affairs of man including government.-----
2. The Party will be guided by Christian values, norms and principles. -----

Article 4 -----

OBJECTIVES-----

1. The objectives of the Party are: -----
 - a. To function as a Political Party in order to attain seats in parliament and positions in government in order to be able to serve the people of Sint Maarten and to improve the quality of life in the country for all inhabitants.-----
 - b. To restore and promote accountability, transparency, integrity and decency to public life and governance. -----
 - c. To form, as needed, alliances with political parties that support similar principles and pursue similar objectives in the interest of good governance. ---
2. The objectives will be further elucidated in the party manifesto established by the General Membership Meeting. -----

Article 5 -----

MEANS TO ACHIEVE THE OBJECTIVES -----

The Sint Maarten Christian Party strives to achieve its objectives by: -----

- a. Participating in parliamentary elections; -----
- b. Presenting candidates who accept the philosophy and program of the Party. -----
- c. Convening meetings, conferences lectures and all utilizing all other means of public contact in order to inform the public. -----
- d. Distributing printed materials and utilizing all forms of media, both on- and off-line to inform the public, and -----
- e. All other legally permissible means. -----

Article 6 -----

FUNDS -----

1. The funds of Sint Maarten Christian Party shall consist of: -----
 - a. Enrollment fees and dues of Ordinary and Supporting Members; -----
 - b. Donations; -----
 - c. All other legally obtained revenues; -----
2. Enrollment fees and dues are established by the General Membership Meeting

upon proposal by the Board and are subject to revision from time to time. The fees are due on acceptance as Ordinary Member or Supporting Member. Further elucidation in connection with dues to be paid will be regulated in the By Laws. ----

Article 7 -----
MEMBERS -----

1. The Membership of the Association consists of the following categories: -----
 - a. Ordinary Members; these are natural persons who are eligible to vote in the parliamentary elections of Sint Maarten. -----
 - b. Supporting Members; these are natural persons eighteen (18) years of age or older, and who do not have the Dutch nationality, but who have legal residence status on Sint Maarten and are a supporter of the Sint Maarten Christian Party. -----
Supporting Members may serve on a committee, but may not be appointed to the Board. -----
 - c. Honorary Members are persons who have been of exceptional service to the Sint Maarten Christian Party or to Sint Maarten. -----
Honorary Members do not have voting rights. -----
2. Members must be accepted by the Board of the Sint Maarten Christian Party. ----
The Association can further set guidelines in the By-Laws. If a decision is made not to accept a person as a member, the reasons for this refusal must be stated in a letter to the person, who then may appeal to the Advisory Council. -----
3. An Ordinary Member and a Supporting Member of the Association cannot at the same time be a member of another political organization nor at the same time be a candidate of any other political organization. In case such a situation arises the member will be informed in writing that this is in violation of this constitution and he/she must decide whether to remain with the Sint Maarten Christian Party or terminate his/her membership at once. -----

Article 8 -----
TERMINATION MEMBERSHIP -----

1. The Membership ends: -----
 - a. by death of the individual member; -----
 - b. by written notice of termination by the member to the Board; -----
 - c. upon notice of termination in writing by the Board to the member; -----
 - d. by expulsion of the member by the Board in the case where the member acts in contravention of the articles of this constitution, the regulations or resolutions of the Association or if the member does injury to the Association in an unreasonable way; -----
 - e. by cancellation of the Honorary Membership by the General Membership Meeting. -----
2. A member, whose membership has been terminated for not paying contribution for more than three (3) months, can only be reinstated if and when the outstanding contributions have been paid in full. If after being reminded the member does not pay his/her contribution the Board can proposed to the General Membership Meeting to expel said member. -----

Article 9 -----
GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING/PARTY CONGRESS -----

Each year at least one PARTY CONGRESS is held, during the third quarter of the year. -----

1. In the said meeting the following shall be done: -----
 - a. The Auditing Committee shall give its report; -----
 - b. The Treasurer shall give a financial report of the preceding fiscal year; -----
 - c. The Secretary shall give the annual report concerning the foregoing fiscal year; -----
 - d. The President shall also give the annual report concerning the foregoing fiscal year; -----
 - e. The Party Leader shall give an annual report. -----
 - f. Vacancies on the Board shall be filled if needed; -----

- g. A new Auditing Committee and Advisory Council will be elected. Members of the Board may not be members of the Auditing Committee or of the Advisory Council. -----
- h. The Board shall present a report of the activities for the upcoming year. -----
- 2. Special General Membership Meetings shall be held as frequently as the Board deems fit. -----
- 3. General Membership Meetings shall be convened in writing at least seven (7) working days prior to the meeting itself. The proposed agenda must be simultaneously made known to the members. -----
In cases of urgency the Board may deviate from the term of seven (7) days, but must adhere to a minimum of four (4) days. -----
- 4. Special General Membership Meetings can also be held at the request of at least such a number of members as shall be competent to cast ten percent (10%) of the votes in a General Membership Meeting. -----
- 5. In the event the Board neglects to honor such a request within two (2) weeks, the members shall be entitled to convene said Special General Membership Meeting themselves. -----
- 6. General Membership Meetings shall be valid if there is a quorum, which means that more than half of the voting members is present. If at this meeting there is no quorum then a second meeting must be convened with the same agenda, which meeting is to be held within not less than one (1) week and not more than three (3) weeks. In this second meeting the topics to be dealt with can be decided upon if one third (1/3) of the voting members are present. If less than one third (1/3) of the voting members are present in this second meeting then the Board can take a decision if the Board has a quorum. -----
- 7. All resolutions are taken by simple majority of the votes cast unless otherwise provided for in this Constitution. -----
- 8. Only Ordinary Members have the right to vote. -----
- 9. Voting on matters is done verbally, voting on persons in writing through unsigned ballots. In case of doubt, the Board shall decide whether there is a case of persons or matters. -----
- 10. Abstentions and blank ballots shall not be considered as votes cast. -----
- 11. If an appointment is voted upon, the person who has obtained the absolute majority of the votes cast, is held to be elected. -----
In the event that nobody has obtained such a majority, a second ballot shall be taken between the two persons who have obtained the greatest number of votes. If more than two persons have obtained the same number of votes and at the same time, the greatest number of the votes cast, then a second ballot is taken between the two of those persons elected thereto by lot. -----
- 12. The President, the Secretary and the Treasurer of the Board or their respective substitutes shall also act as such at the General Membership Meeting. -----

Article 10 -----

THE BOARD -----

- 1. The Board consists of a minimum of three (3) and a maximum of seven (7) persons. The minimum of three (3) comprise the President, Secretary and Treasurer. -----
- 2. With the exception of the President, the Secretary and the Treasurer, the board members may hold two (2) functions on the Board. -----
- 3. The duties assigned to the abovementioned functions are, but not limited to what is mentioned hereafter: -----
 - a. President: proposes policies in line with the Association's objectives, ensures that the board conducts its business effectively and efficiently thereto making necessary decisions and ensuring that action thereto is taken, presides at all meetings of the Board and General Membership Meetings, establishes the agenda for meetings of the Board and serves as a contact to the Party Council. -----
 - b. Secretary: keeps documentation that will reflect when, why and how the Board's decisions were executed and will therefore record accurate minutes

of Board meetings as well as General Membership Meetings and ensure the distribution of the minutes and the approval thereof. Furthermore the Secretary will give timely notice of any meetings. -----

- c. The Treasurer is responsible for the proper management and reporting of the Association's funds, the maintenance and oversight of bank accounts and financial transactions thereto, establishes budgets and financial policies. -----
- 4. The Board will remain legally constituted even when the number of Board members drops below three (3), but in such a case the vacancies should be filled within thirty (30) days. -----
- 5. In case of impediment or default of all Board members, the Association shall be temporarily managed by two (2) persons designated thereto by the General Membership Meeting. -----
- 6. Board members are elected from the Ordinary Members by the General Membership Meeting and must be twenty-one (21) years of age or older. -----

Article 11 -----

REPRESENTATION -----

The Association shall judicially and extra-judicially be jointly represented by the President and the Treasurer, or the President and the Secretary, or the Treasurer and the Secretary. -----

Article 12 -----

TERMINATION BOARD MEMBERSHIP -----

- 1. Members of the Board are elected in function for a period of two (2) years, but the General Membership Meeting can suspend and/or dismiss a Board member in accordance with the manner stipulated herein and in the By-Laws. -----
- 2. Membership to the Board ends by: -----
 - a. Death; -----
 - b. Resignation (in writing). A notice of three (3) months must be observed; -----
 - c. Expiration of the above mentioned term; -----
 - d. Irrevocable bankruptcy, the loss in any way of the free management of own capacity or capital of one of the members, as well as being put under trusteeship; -----
 - e. Dismissal granted General Membership Meeting; -----
 - f. Dissolution and liquidation of the Association; -----
- 3. Outgoing Board members are immediately eligible for re-election. -----

Article 13 -----

BOARD MEETINGS -----

- 1. Board meetings shall be held as frequently as the President or at least two (2) Board members deems necessary, but at least once (1) every month. -----
- 2. Board Meetings shall be valid if more than half of the Board members is present. If at this meeting more than half of the members is not present, a second meeting must be convened with the same agenda, which meeting is to be held not less than forty-eight (48) hours and not more than seven (7) days after the first meeting. -----

If in this second meeting there is no quorum (more than half of the voting members present) the Advisory Council will be asked to mediate. If the Advisory Council is unable to reach a proper solution the fourth step would be to present the matter or issue to General Membership Meeting. -----

Article 14 -----

ADVISORY COUNCIL -----

- 1. There is an Advisory Council, which has as task to advise the Board and the committees on behalf of the Party Congress or the General Membership Meeting. -----
- 2. The Advisory Council will advise upon request or at its own initiative. -----
- 3. The Advisory Council shall consist of three members appointed by the Party Congress. -----
- 4. The Advisory Council is chaired by a chairperson who is elected every other year at the annual Party Congress. The chairperson is appointed for a period of two years. -----
- 5. The Advisory Council shall meet at least once a quarter. -----

Article 15 -----

PARTY LEADER -----

1. The Association has a Party Leader, who is entrusted with the political leadership of the Sint Maarten Christian Party. -----
2. The Party Leader is a member of the Board and in this capacity acts as the executive advisor of the Board. -----
3. The Party Leader is chosen from the ordinary members by the Party Congress. ---
4. The Party Leader shall in principle be the person heading the list of candidates for the parliamentary elections on Sint Maarten. -----
5. The procedure for choosing a Party Leader shall be established in the By-Laws. --
6. For the first time the Party Leader will be appointed by the Board. -----

Article 16 -----

POLITICAL PROGRAM -----

The Board of the Sint Maarten Christian Party will establish a draft manifesto and present it to the General Membership Meeting ultimo thirty (30) days prior to the election date. -----

The Party Congress is charged with establishing the political program and the election program for the elections for the Parliament of Sint Maarten. -----

Article 17 -----

CANDIDATES LIST -----

1. Only Ordinary Members are eligible for nomination. -----
2. The Party Leader is charged with the task of comprising a list of candidates for the parliamentary elections. -----
3. The General Membership shall appoint a Nominating Committee consisting of the Party Leader, the Chairman of the Advisory Committee and the Chairman of the Campaign Committee. -----
4. The Party Leader is the Chairman of the Nominating Committee. -----
5. These nominees will be approved by the Board and then presented to the General Membership Meeting. -----

Article 18 -----

CAMPAIGN COMMITTEE -----

1. The Board shall appoint a Campaign Committee charged with the planning and execution of a campaign. This committee is installed at the latest six (6) months prior to the election. -----
2. The Campaign Committee must include at least the Political Leader, and the President and Treasurer of the Board of the Sint Maarten Christian Party. -----
3. The Campaign Committee must submit a budget to the Board for approval. -----

Article 19 -----

COMMITTEES -----

1. The General Membership Meeting and the Board may also establish other Permanent or Ad Hoc Committees and regulate their tasks as well as the manner of their functioning. -----
4. The Board shall render periodical reports to the General Meeting concerning the activities of the Committees. -----

Article 20 -----

BY-LAWS -----

Other stipulations regarding the organization and management of the Sint Maarten Christian Party shall be dealt with by the By-Laws, as far as not herein contained. The By-Laws shall not contain any stipulations conflicting with this Constitution of the Association. In matters not regulated in the Constitution, the By-Laws, and other resolutions of the General Meeting, the Board shall decide. -----

Article 21 -----

AMENDMENT OF THE CONSTITUTION -----

1. This Constitution shall be amendable only in a special General Membership Meeting especially convened for such purpose and wherein at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Ordinary Members with voting rights is present and the amendment is approved by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast. -----

2. In the event the required number of Ordinary members is not present at the time of this special General Membership Meeting, within not less than one (1) week and not more than four (4) weeks thereafter, a special meeting can be convened again for such purpose and wherein more than half of the Ordinary Members with voting rights is present, and the amendment can then be approved by simple majority vote. -----
3. If at this second meeting there is no quorum then a third meeting will be convened with the same agenda, which meeting is to be held within not less than one (1) week and not more than two (2) weeks thereafter, without a quorum being necessary, and the amendment can then be approved by simple majority vote. ---

Article 22 -----

DISSOLUTION OF THE ASSOCIATION -----

1. A resolution to dissolve the Association requires the same number of votes and the same quorum as required for a resolution to amend the articles of this constitution; the paragraphs of article 21 are likewise applicable. -----
2. In case of a resolution as meant in paragraph 1 of this article, the General Membership Meeting decides about the allocation of a positive balance. Any positive balance of funds will be divided between selected Christian foundations active in the areas youth work or elderly care. -----
The paragraphs of article 21 are likewise applicable to this last mentioned resolution; -----
3. After a resolution as meant sub 1, the Board is in charge of the liquidation, but the Board may appoint one or more liquidator(s). -----
The provisions of these Articles of this Association remain in force as much as possible during the liquidation. -----
4. The liquidation will furthermore be effected with due observance of the provisions of the applicable articles of the Civil Code of Sint Maarten -----

Article 23 -----

FISCAL YEAR AND REPORTS -----

1. The fiscal year of the Association runs from January first up to and including December thirty-first of each year. -----
2. Per the end of each fiscal year the books of the Association are closed. -----
3. Within three (3) months after the end of the fiscal year – subject to any extension of this term by the General Membership Meeting - the Board shall present in a General Membership Meeting an annual report on the course of the business of the Association and the management conducted. The Board shall submit the annual accounts, consisting of at least a balance sheet and a statement of assets and liabilities and an explanatory memorandum with respect to these documents, to the meeting for approval. -----

FINAL PROVISIONS -----

The appearers furthermore declared that: -----

- the first fiscal year of the Association runs from the commencement of its activities up to and including December 31, 2015; -----
- that in deviation from the above mention in article - as far as concerns the manner of appointment - the present Board members of the Association are: -----
 1. Mr. WYCLIFFE SYLVESTER SMITH, aforementioned as **President**;-----
 2. Mr. BENJAMIN STEPHEN BELL, a business man, residing at Alexander Richardson Street 13, Ebenezer Estate, Sint Maarten, born on Sint Maarten, formerly the Netherlands Antilles, on September 4, 1983, married, holder of a passport issued by the Kingdom of the Netherlands with number NPP47Ro94, as **Secretary**; and -----
 3. Ms. JACQUELINE GWENDOLYN GODET, an administrator, residing at Honey Dew Road 9b, South Reward, Sint Maarten, born on Aruba, formerly the Netherlands Antilles, on December 7, 1963, not married and never been married, holder of a passport issued by the Kingdom of the Netherlands with number NSH151BK2, as **Treasurer**; -----

who have all accepted their appointment. -----

The appearers are known to me, civil law notary. -----

----- WHEREOF THIS DEED
has been executed in one original copy on Sint Maarten, on the date mentioned in the
heading hereof. -----

After relating the substance of this deed to the appearers, they unanimously declared
to have examined the contents of this deed and not to require a full reading thereof. --
Then after a summary reading of this deed, it was signed by the appearers and by
me, civil law notary. -----

(w.s) W. Smith, J. Arrindell, M. Boekhoudt.

ISSUED FOR TRUE COPY